
AGENDA 
FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION 

Office of Insurance Regulation 
Materials Available on the Web at: 

http://www.floir.com/Sections/GovAffairs/FSC.aspx 
 

December 8, 2015 
 

MEMBERS 
Governor Rick Scott 

Attorney General Pam Bondi 
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Atwater 

Commissioner Adam Putnam 
 
Contact: Karen Kees 
  (850-413-2474)      9:00 A.M. 
          LL-03, The Capitol 
          Tallahassee, Florida 

ITEM     SUBJECT    RECOMMENDATION 
1.   Minutes of the Financial Services Commission for October 27, 2015. 

 http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agenda15/1027/transcript.pdf 
 

  (ATTACHMENT 1)                   FOR APPROVAL 
 

2.  Request for Approval for Publication of Proposed Amendment to 69O-143.046,.047,.056; 
Registration of Insurers; Standards; Acquisition of Controlling Stock 

    The rules regulate the operation of insurance holding companies and their affiliates. They 
also govern the acquisition process of insurance entities. The rules implement the provisions 
of the NAIC model related to insurance holding companies and update the provisions 
regarding the reporting of Enterprise Risk. Several of the forms that are used to report 
information have been deleted or revised to conform with standardized forms used by the 
NAIC. 

 
 (ATTACHMENT 2)    APPROVAL FOR PUBLICATION 
 

3.    Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Proposed Amendment to Rule 69O-
154.202,.203,.204; Long term Disability Morbidity Tables    

      Over time mortality and morbidity tables no longer reflect anticipated future projected 
benefits.  The NAIC has adopted updated morbidity tables applicable to Long Term 
Disability policies. 

                 

 (ATTACHMENT 3)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 
 

http://www.floir.com/Sections/GovAffairs/FSC.aspx
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agenda15/1027/transcript.pdf


4. Approval of Appointment to the Workers’ Compensation Joint Underwriting Association 
Board of Governors Vacant At-Large Seat  

 
 Pursuant to Section 627.311 (5)(b), Florida Statutes, there are nine members of the Florida 

Workers’ Compensation Joint Underwriting Association (FWCJUA) Board of Governors; 
eight of the members shall be appointed by the Financial Services Commission.  There is 
currently a vacant at-large seat that requires appointment by the Financial Services 
Commission.  

 

(ATTACHMENT 4)    FOR APPROVAL 
 
 



· · · · · · · · · · · ··                      STATE OF FLORIDA
·
·
·
·
·
· IN RE:··MEETING OF THE GOVERNOR
· · · · ··         AND CABINET
·
· __________________________________
·
·
·
·
· CABINET MEMBERS:· · · · · · ··GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              ATTORNEY GENERAL PAM BONDI
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              JEFF ATWATER
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              ADAM PUTNAM
·
·
· DATE:· · · · · · · · · · · · ·TUESDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2015
·
·
· LOCATION:· · · · · · · · · · ·CABINET MEETING ROOM
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              LOWER LEVEL, THE CAPITOL
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ··                              TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
·
·
·
· REPORTED BY:· · · · · · · · ··YVONNE LAFLAMME
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·                              COURT REPORTER and
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ··                              NOTARY PUBLIC
·
·
·
·
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·                        C & N REPORTERS
· · · · · · · · · · · ·                      POST OFFICE BOX 3093
· · · · · · · · · · ·                   TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32315
· · · · · · · · · · · · ··                         (850) 697-8314
·
·
·
·
·
·
·



Page 72

·**********************************************************·1·
· · · · · · ··             OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION· ·
··2·
·**********************************************************· ·
· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Next, I would like to recognize·3·
·· ·
· · ·    Kevin McCarty with the Office of Insurance Regulation.·4·
·· ·
· · · · ··         Good morning, Kevin.·5·
·· ·
· · · · ··         Kevin, congratulations.··You have another couple·6·
·· ·
· · ·    weeks, but another year without a hurricane.·7·
·· ·
· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Yes.·8·
·· ·
· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··And Citizens is down to, what,·9·
·· ·
· · ·    how many policies?10·
·· ·
· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··About 550,00011·
·· ·
· · ·    policies.12·
·· ·
· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··You got take-outs of quite a13·
·· ·
· · ·    bit in the next two months?14·
·· ·
· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Yes, we have a15·
·· ·
· · ·    130,000 that I plan to announce on Friday, at least,16·
·· ·
· · ·    which is, we are continuing to see increased interest17·
·· ·
· · ·    in "wind-only" policies, which historically, as you18·
·· ·
· · ·    are very familiar, have been the most difficult ones19·
·· ·
· · ·    to depopulate from Citizens so we're cautiously20·
·· ·
· · ·    optimistic that this continues.21·
·· ·
· · · · ··         And, of course, this is in large part brought22·
·· ·
· · ·    about the kind of resurgence in the re-insurance23·
·· ·
· · ·    marketplace.··After 2004 and '5, we saw a huge spikes24·
·· ·
· · ·    in re-insurance, but what we have seen since the25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 73

· · ·    financial crisis in 2008 is a diversification of the·1·

· · ·    portfolios across the world.··We determined that our·2·

· · ·    equities market were not as non-correlated as we·3·

· · ·    thought they were and now we're seeing a huge influx,·4·

· · ·    particularly pension funds, which has brought in a·5·

· · ·    great deal of capital to the marketplace, which leaves·6·

· · ·    me very -- I would say cautiously optimistic.·7·

· · · · ··         It would take a series of significant events, and·8·

· · ·    I think part of what I can show you today in our·9·

· · ·    discussions about the stress test is just how vibrant10·

· · ·    that marketplace is, because a lot of Florida11·

· · ·    companies are indigenous to Florida.··Many of them12·

· · ·    grown up to be national companies and have started 5,13·

· · ·    10, 15 million, are now holding 150 million, are14·

· · ·    publicly traded and AMS rated.··So, we're looking --15·

· · ·    the market is looking very good and I hope to get a16·

· · ·    little detail on that.17·

· · · · ··         First item is request for approval the minutes18·

· · ·    from September 29, 2015, meeting with the Financial19·

· · ·    Services Commission.20·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a motion on the item?21·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··So moved.22·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a second?23·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Second.24·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Any comments or objections?25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 74

· · ·    Hearing none, the motion carries.·1·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Okay.··Requests for·2·

· · ·    approval for appointment of the Board of Governors for·3·

· · ·    the Joint Underwriting Association.··The board is·4·

· · ·    prescribed by statute for the number of statutory·5·

· · ·    positions.··For the Domestic Insurer, we're·6·

· · ·    recommending Tom Koval.··For another Domestic is·7·

· · ·    Thomas Sullivan.··For Foreign Insurer, James Ward.·8·

· · ·    And for Foreign Insurer Seat 2, Mark Hogel.··And FAIC·9·

· · ·    Robert Moore.··An at-large seat is Charlie Clary.··And10·

· · ·    the last seat is Claude Revels.··That's seven of11·

· · ·    eighth.12·

· · · · ··         The eighth seat is still vacant.··It's an13·

· · ·    at-large seat and currently is being vacated by Rocky14·

· · ·    Rodriguez, and we're in the process of screening15·

· · ·    future applicants for a future meeting.16·

· · · · ··         We would recommend the seven of the eight board17·

· · ·    members to be appointed and to have Senator Charlie18·

· · ·    Clary remain as Chair of the Board of Governors.19·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a motion on the item?20·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··So moved.21·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a second?22·

· · · · ··         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ATWATER:··Second.23·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Any comments or objections?24·

· · ·    Hearing none, the motion carries.25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 75

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Kevin, what's the --·1·

· · ·    Governor?·2·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Go ahead.·3·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··In light of our previous·4·

· · ·    two hours, what's the -- how do you want to receive·5·

· · ·    nominations or suggestions for your remaining at large·6·

· · ·    membership?·7·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··We've been in·8·

· · ·    contact with your office.··We've solicited some·9·

· · ·    inputs.··We're waiting for additional input from your10·

· · ·    offices.··We are also soliciting from other11·

· · ·    stakeholders.··And I would be bringing forth those,12·

· · ·    and we'll offer those to you in an open and13·

· · ·    transparent process.14·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Thank you.15·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Anything else?··Okay.16·

· · · · ··         Item 3?17·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Item 3 is18·

· · ·    performance report of the Financial Services.··I'm19·

· · ·    trying to get this.··My sincere apologies.··It's not20·

· · ·    been put on the screen for us to review, but I will go21·

· · ·    through some of the highlights if you don't mind.22·

· · · · ··         First of all, as was discussed with you before in23·

· · ·    previous slides defining success.··We are looking at a24·

· · ·    number of things at the Office of Insurance25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 76

· · ·    Regulation:·1·

· · · · ··         First of all, our mission of course is to promote·2·

· · ·    a stable marketplace, but most importantly, to·3·

· · ·    remember that in doing so, we are here to protect·4·

· · ·    consumers.··An open and vibrant marketplace with·5·

· · ·    competitive products and many competitors in the·6·

· · ·    marketplace, isn't good, and we want to make sure we·7·

· · ·    continue to promote that;·8·

· · · · ··         Promote the public from unethical or illegal·9·

· · ·    behavior and identify financially-troubled companies,10·

· · ·    so we can intervene;11·

· · · · ··         And then lastly, operate the office in an12·

· · ·    efficient an effective manner.··We have already13·

· · ·    started talking about some of the vibrancy in the14·

· · ·    property market.··We touched on the numbers, of course15·

· · ·    workers' comp. We just had a workers' comp. hearing.16·

· · ·    They requested a decrease which will equate to 5817·

· · ·    percent decrease in recent reforms, but first enacted18·

· · ·    in 2003.19·

· · · · ··         Again, I think when you're going around the20·

· · ·    country, Governor, encouraging businesses to come to21·

· · ·    Florida, in addition to the strong education system,22·

· · ·    we want to make sure we have an adequate insurance23·

· · ·    environment so workers' comp. is a key element in24·

· · ·    captains of industry making their determinations to25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 77

· · ·    relocate to Florida.·1·

· · · · ··         The life and annuities market is strong.··We have·2·

· · ·    some challenges in long-term care.··That's from legacy·3·

· · ·    businesses.··The health market, there's some·4·

· · ·    competitive issue in the health market; a lot of·5·

· · ·    instability brought about by the Affordable Care Act.·6·

· · ·    We'll be talking more about that in a little bit.·7·

· · · · ··         In terms of challenges it has, you know, the·8·

· · ·    health care reforms, as I mentioned, has put a lot of·9·

· · ·    strains on some of our smaller carriers.··We're10·

· · ·    looking at our HMOs in particular.··We're looking11·

· · ·    about implementing some changes this legislative12·

· · ·    session that will help give the office additional13·

· · ·    tools to identify early problems so that we can help14·

· · ·    work with the companies to adjust their ability to15·

· · ·    take on those policies.16·

· · · · ··         If you think about it, under the Affordable Care17·

· · ·    Act, once you get on the federally facilitated18·

· · ·    exchange, you may only want 30,000 policies but you19·

· · ·    end up getting 130,000.··That obviously will overcome20·

· · ·    your infrastructure, your IT department, as well as21·

· · ·    your network to absorb those number of policies.22·

· · · · ··         Cyber security continues to be a major concern.23·

· · ·    We have 1.5 million Floridians have been exposed to24·

· · ·    some breaches of cyber security that you might have25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 78

· · ·    read about.··This is particularly vulnerable in the·1·

· · ·    health care environment, and we are working with the·2·

· · ·    task force to look at some best practices, as well as·3·

· · ·    looking at companies to see what they're doing·4·

· · ·    internally to protect their policyholders.·5·

· · · · ··         Of course, there's new changes in the new·6·

· · ·    business model with Uber and Uplift and Google coming·7·

· · ·    out with a driver-less car.··It's going to be new·8·

· · ·    challenge in the future in how we conduct insurance·9·

· · ·    and look at insurance products of the future.10·

· · · · ··         On the opportunity side, we're looking at changes11·

· · ·    in modernization.··We're asking for legislation.12·

· · ·    Previously, we asked for change in our reserving to go13·

· · ·    from a formalistic approach to a more principle-based14·

· · ·    approach.··This year, we're asking for additional15·

· · ·    tools to look at enterprise-wide risks and potential16·

· · ·    outside risk.··It's called ORSA, Own Risk and Solvency17·

· · ·    Assessment.··This will give regulators around the18·

· · ·    country a better ability to identify risks.19·

· · · · ··         As we have seen from the financial crisis, it's20·

· · ·    not so much the insurance that's at risk; it's the21·

· · ·    exterior as we've seen in AIG.22·

· · · · ··         In terms of selected activities, I want to23·

· · ·    highlight this year, as I mentioned, we are looking24·

· · ·    for reforms in the health care arena for additional25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 79

· · ·    tools for risk-based capital analysis.··I would like·1·

· · ·    to again congratulate the good work of our Attorney·2·

· · ·    General and our CFO as we work collaboratively to make·3·

· · ·    sure people have the benefit of the bargain, who are·4·

· · ·    not getting the benefit of their life insurance·5·

· · ·    policies.·6·

· · · · ··         To date, we early estimated to CFO, something·7·

· · ·    north of a billion dollars nationwide.··We're now over·8·

· · ·    seven billion dollars, which have been returned to·9·

· · ·    policyholders around the country.··And we will be10·

· · ·    happy to bring detailed information on that as it11·

· · ·    develops.12·

· · · · ··         Undiscriminatory drug practices, as I previously13·

· · ·    reported, Florida led the nation in eliminating14·

· · ·    discrimination against people who are living with HIV15·

· · ·    to make sure they have affordable access to the drugs16·

· · ·    necessary for survival.17·

· · · · ··         Billing practices is becoming exacerbated by the18·

· · ·    Affordable Care Act.··We call it the narrowing of the19·

· · ·    networks.··We're seeing fewer products, seeing fewer20·

· · ·    PPOs; virtually none of the products on the individual21·

· · ·    exchange are PPOs anymore.··They're all EPOs.··We know22·

· · ·    there's a problem with billing.··I know the consumer23·

· · ·    advocate has heard a hearing on that.··We look forward24·

· · ·    to working with the industry on addressing this very25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 80

· · ·    serious significant problem.··Because as you know, as·1·

· · ·    a consumer, a well-informed consumer will go on the·2·

· · ·    website, they'll pick the doctor, they'll pick the·3·

· · ·    hospital, and if that Tuesday the anesthesiologist is·4·

· · ·    not on contract, instead of being a thousand dollars,·5·

· · ·    it turns out to be $25 or $30,000.·6·

· · · · ··         There's that in the surprise billing, and we're·7·

· · ·    very pleased to work with the Legislature, and the·8·

· · ·    Consumer Advocate's Office, and you, CFO, to address·9·

· · ·    this very significant public policy issue.10·

· · · · ··         You know, Florida pays 38 percent of the flood11·

· · ·    premiums in the state, and we're looking to seeing12·

· · ·    about getting some data from FEMA and Craig Fugate to13·

· · ·    see about having an open and transparent process about14·

· · ·    rates so that we can encourage the private sector15·

· · ·    market in that regard.16·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Why aren't they giving us the17·

· · ·    data?18·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··I haven't heard back19·

· · ·    from Director Fugate.··Some of the data they claim is20·

· · ·    proprietary.··We anticipate getting some of the data.21·

· · ·    But I'm not sure.··And as soon as I get that22·

· · ·    information, I'll share that with you, Governor.23·

· · · · ··         In terms of our qualitative performance measures,24·

· · ·    7 out of 10 of those measures we provided information25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 81

· · ·    on.··Three of those measures really are not reportable·1·

· · ·    because that information doesn't really become·2·

· · ·    available until the third and fourth quarter.·3·

· · · · ··         Each measure, the only area with deficiency was·4·

· · ·    in a non-priority financial analysis where you need to·5·

· · ·    have 100 percent, and we were at 99.9 percent.·6·

· · · · ··         And if you look at the last slide, it will show·7·

· · ·    you details with regard to each of the performance·8·

· · ·    measures.··If you take it on balance, it will be a·9·

· · ·    4.86 score.10·

· · · · ··         We would like to point out of those three areas11·

· · ·    that we did not report on this year, in 2014, we did12·

· · ·    perform at 100 percent.··I didn't mention a major part13·

· · ·    of our objective is to work with you, Governor, to14·

· · ·    bring jobs to Florida.··I don't have any jobs to15·

· · ·    report on a quarterly basis, but I know from the16·

· · ·    information we've received, we're getting more17·

· · ·    business come to Florida, we're getting more interest18·

· · ·    in relocating, redomesticating; and of course, we have19·

· · ·    more title jobs coming to Florida, thanks to Old20·

· · ·    Republic, but we also know 8,000 jobs came last year21·

· · ·    directly as a result of that work.··And we certainly,22·

· · ·    as part of our performance measures, are bringing jobs23·

· · ·    to Florida.24·

· · · · ··         So that concludes my report.25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 82

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··You guys were very responsive on·1·

· · ·    Old Republic.··It wouldn't have happened if you·2·

· · ·    wouldn't have been so responsive.·3·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Well, I think it was·4·

· · ·    a team effort -- I thank you for that -- but they got·5·

· · ·    your letter in the cold of a January morning in·6·

· · ·    Minnesota.··And I think your appeal to the sun, the·7·

· · ·    beautiful place to live and work, was very appealing.·8·

· · ·    So it was a team effort, Governor.··Thank you.·9·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··You did a good job.10·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··That concludes my11·

· · ·    report.12·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a motion to accept the13·

· · ·    report?14·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··Move to accept.15·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Is there a second?16·

· · · · ··         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ATWATER:··Second.17·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Any comments or objections?18·

· · ·    Hearing none, the motion carries.19·

· · · · ··         Go ahead.20·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··Kevin, I know you have a21·

· · ·    great staff and huge staff of lawyers, but if you want22·

· · ·    us to look at that the proprietary information, we23·

· · ·    would be glad to.··And it may very well be24·

· · ·    proprietary, but it also seems that it may be25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 83

· · ·    something that our state needs.·1·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··It's a real problem.··Kevin,·2·

· · ·    aren't we only one donor?·3·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··Yeah.·4·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Our experience is·5·

· · ·    they're --·6·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··I want to look at it.·7·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··-- they're not very·8·

· · ·    willing to produce information.·9·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··And you can't go forward without10·

· · ·    the data, right?11·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··We have some of the12·

· · ·    data.··We do have some of the data.··We have some of13·

· · ·    the lost data, but we went through it fairly -- we14·

· · ·    worked with our team and an exterior team of actuaries15·

· · ·    as to what information would be necessary for us to16·

· · ·    replicate these rates.17·

· · · · ··         If my memory serves me right, these rates were18·

· · ·    developed in the 1940s by Army Corp of Engineers.··I19·

· · ·    think there's been a little advancement in development20·

· · ·    in terms of developing rates in the future,21·

· · ·    particularly modeling that would be -- and I think22·

· · ·    it's important, and I had this conversation with our23·

· · ·    Congressional leaders, that however they develop the24·

· · ·    rates, particularly since we're paying 37, 38 percent25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 84

· · ·    of them, it should be done in a way where you can be·1·

· · ·    verified and checked by other organizations, such FIU,·2·

· · ·    who has built a model, and others actuaries around the·3·

· · ·    country, so we can have confidence that the rate we're·4·

· · ·    paying is fair and equitable.·5·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··Governor, may I?··Would·6·

· · ·    she meet with Kent Perez and Pat Gleason on that,·7·

· · ·    please?·8·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Certainly.··My·9·

· · ·    pleasure, yes.10·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··It's a real problem, because I11·

· · ·    mean, Pinellas County, in particular the rates were12·

· · ·    just ridiculous.··The people couldn't pay them.13·

· · ·    There's no way to pay for it.14·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··That's correct, and15·

· · ·    it will have obviously --16·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··It's going happen again --17·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Yes.18·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··-- if they don't get it fixed.19·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Thanks to your20·

· · ·    encouraging the Congress, they did do a delay of some21·

· · ·    of the more egregious provisions of the (inaudible)22·

· · ·    Bill, and I know Congressman Ross is trying to put in23·

· · ·    provisions that if you leave and go to the private24·

· · ·    sector and come back, that you're not punished and go25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 85

· · ·    up to the highest rates.··So we need to continue our·1·

· · ·    efforts and put pressure on them.·2·

· · · · ··         We certainly want to expand the market, but·3·

· · ·    whatever the residual market is, is in the flood·4·

· · ·    program; we need to make sure those rates are fair and·5·

· · ·    equitable, and we know the Floridians are not paying·6·

· · ·    -- it's not actuarially based, so we need to further·7·

· · ·    investigate that and we will commit to continue that.·8·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Anything else?·9·

· · · · ··         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ATWATER:··Governor, can I10·

· · ·    just make an observation?11·

· · · · ··         Thank you, Kevin.12·

· · · · ··         At some point, as the Cabinet Commission, we have13·

· · ·    a responsibility that in working with the14·

· · ·    Commissioner's Office at OIR, as well as the15·

· · ·    catastrophic fund, Jack Endleson (phonetic) and as16·

· · ·    with Citizens and Barry Gilway (phonetic) there may be17·

· · ·    a time when -- you just touched on a couple of items18·

· · ·    that I think it would be valuable for us to see19·

· · ·    everything at one time, and maybe we can narrow the20·

· · ·    scope of that conversation so as to not be21·

· · ·    over-extensive on the time issue -- but to walk22·

· · ·    through each of these entities is now in the --23·

· · ·    certainly the CAT fund at Citizens -- in the strongest24·

· · ·    financial position it's been, but it would not happen25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 86

· · ·    if there was not a private sector that's been·1·

· · ·    absorbing some of this extensive risk that is moved·2·

· · ·    there, and the stress test has just come out showing·3·

· · ·    that the conversation as to the stability of these·4·

· · ·    players that are taking people either in a take-out·5·

· · ·    situation, or when it comes around in the·6·

· · ·    clearinghouse that there should be some comfort there.·7·

· · · · ··         So I might suggest somewhere on a future agenda·8·

· · ·    if we can think about seeing all three of these at·9·

· · ·    once, I think it would be valuable to see it together.10·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··I would be happy to11·

· · ·    arrange that.12·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··I think it's a good idea.··A lot13·

· · ·    of people have done a good job, but we're heading in14·

· · ·    the right direction, and we're in better financial15·

· · ·    shape than we have been by a long shot.16·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Commissioner Putnam,17·

· · ·    did you have a question?··I'm sorry.18·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··No.19·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··Commissioner?20·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Do I read this right that21·

· · ·    under your stress test, the impact of the '0422·

· · ·    hurricane season went down?··It was a $23 billion23·

· · ·    event in '04 when it happened and it's modeled as24·

· · ·    being a $16 billion event.··Is that because of25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 87

· · ·    pardoning?·1·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··I'm not sure.·2·

· · · · ··         Do you know that?·3·

· · · · ··         I'm going to ask my colleague to help on that.·4·

· · · · ··         ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:··Commissioner, I don't·5·

· · ·    understand your question.··Can you explain it to me?·6·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··If I'm reading correctly,·7·

· · ·    on page 15, your stress test, the '04 season was a·8·

· · ·    $23 billion impact.··In your stress test, it's modeled·9·

· · ·    as being a $16 billion impact.··Is that because of10·

· · ·    building codes and hardening that Florida would be11·

· · ·    less vulnerable if those same scenarios played out?12·

· · · · ··         MR. ALTMEYER:··Yes, thank you.··David Altmeyer.13·

· · ·    I'm the Deputy Commissioner of PNC with the Office of14·

· · ·    Insurance Regulation.15·

· · · · ··         I would say it's probably a culmination of16·

· · ·    hardening of the building codes.··I would say that17·

· · ·    many of the companies that were impacted by the18·

· · ·    '04-'05 seasons probably diversified their book of19·

· · ·    business a little bit more, afterwards, to mitigate20·

· · ·    future losses in such a season.21·

· · · · ··         And then finally, the stress test consisted of22·

· · ·    about 67 participants, so it's not 100 percent of the23·

· · ·    marketplace.··While the participants that didn't file24·

· · ·    the stress test results have relatively small market25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 88

· · ·    share, which is why they weren't selected, they·1·

· · ·    probably would contribute some additional losses that·2·

· · ·    might get that number a little bit closer.·3·

· · · · ··         But the number of the report is a model number,·4·

· · ·    and so it could wind up being off by a little bit if·5·

· · ·    it were to actually occur again, but I would say that·6·

· · ·    the difference of those numbers is the combination of·7·

· · ·    the those factors.·8·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··I was also struck, because·9·

· · ·    it was something I've kind of harped on from the10·

· · ·    beginning, that the greatest hit to the resiliency of11·

· · ·    the carriers comes from a multiple storm, multiple12·

· · ·    "medium storm" year, not "the big one."··And we've all13·

· · ·    lived through back to back multiple storm years, and14·

· · ·    it sort of confirmed my anecdote with data, that very15·

· · ·    likely could be the future scenario; that we've all16·

· · ·    kind of convinced ours that there's going to be "the17·

· · ·    big one" that hits this big metropolitan area, when in18·

· · ·    fact, the biggest hit to the resiliency to the19·

· · ·    marketplace is exactly what we've all seen in very20·

· · ·    recent memory.21·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Right.··And that's22·

· · ·    driven in part because with one event you've23·

· · ·    transferred your risk, and you've retained so much and24·

· · ·    you've transferred the risk to the re-insurer.··When25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 89

· · ·    you have multiple storms, your surplus gets hit·1·

· · ·    multiple times, and that's what we've seen happen.·2·

· · · · ··         So that's why in addition to having one or two·3·

· · ·    stress tests, it's important to have a test that has·4·

· · ·    multiples, because that really tests the ability of a·5·

· · ·    company to maintain the necessary surplus to go on to·6·

· · ·    the next storm.·7·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Do you account for -- and I·8·

· · ·    don't know how much of this is a factor, I mean, but·9·

· · ·    it was personally -- if your roof is not replaced10·

· · ·    between storms, it's only costing the insurance11·

· · ·    company once, so how do you tease that out?··Because12·

· · ·    by the end of the summer, in my case in '04, we had13·

· · ·    three eyes come across; they all just rolled it all14·

· · ·    into one claim, because nobody had time to fix15·

· · ·    anything from the first two.16·

· · · · ··         So in some sense, it's actually lessening the17·

· · ·    impact on the company if they're happening in a rapid18·

· · ·    succession, and there's a shortage of labor and19·

· · ·    everything else, like you would expect there to be in20·

· · ·    a multi-event season.21·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Yeah.··And as can22·

· · ·    you recall, during that time, the insurance companies23·

· · ·    oftentimes applied the deductible for the second time24·

· · ·    and then we actually went in an worked with the25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR



Page 90

· · ·    companies and set up a fund to help to consumers who·1·

· · ·    had to pay that twice out-of-pocket, and oftentimes·2·

· · ·    you said it hadn't been.·3·

· · · · ··         But the companies ended up working very closely·4·

· · ·    with their policyholders and oftentimes waiving those·5·

· · ·    deductibles, and we did have a fund that for those who·6·

· · ·    were victimized on more than one occasion because of·7·

· · ·    that storm.·8·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:··Thank you.·9·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Thank you.10·

· · · · ··         GOVERNOR SCOTT:··All right.··Anybody else?11·

· · · · ··         Thank you, Kevin.12·

· · · · ··         COMMISSIONER KEVIN McCARTY:··Thank you.13·

·**********************************************************14·

·15·

·16·

·17·

·18·

·19·

·20·

·21·

·22·

·23·

·24·

·25·

Yvonne LaFlamme, FPR





























































































































































































































































1 
 

Florida Workers’ Compensation Joint Underwriting Association, Inc. (FWCJUA) 
Board of Governors 

Appointment for Consideration  

FWCJUA Board Nominee for Consideration for Vacant At Large Seat 3 
(Office Recommendation) 

 
 At Large Seat 3 Cynthia Howard, C3WCS 
 

Current Board Members Appointed by the Financial Services Commission on 
October 14, 2015: 

Domestic Insurer Seat 1  Thomas A. Koval, FCCI Insurance Group   
Domestic Insurer Seat 2  Steven T. Solomon, WorkComp Partners 
Foreign Insurer Seat 1  James P. Ward, The Hartford Insurance Company 
Foreign Insurer Seat 2 Mark R. Hogle, Employers Insurance Company  
FAIA Seat  Robert T. Moore, Corporate Insurance Advisors, LLC 
At Large Seat 1  Charlie Clary, DAG Architects  
At Large Seat 2 Claude Revels, JM Family Enterprises, Inc. 
At Large Seat 3  Vacant 

Background Summary 

• The operation of the FWCJUA, a non-profit entity, is subject to the supervision of a nine-
member Board of Governors.  

• Eight board members are appointed by, and serve at the pleasure of the Financial Services 
Commission pursuant to section 627.311(5), Florida Statutes.  These include three at-large 
members, two domestic insurer representatives, two foreign insurer representatives, and 
one representative from the largest property and casualty insurance agents’ association in 
Florida (this is the Florida Association of Insurance Agents). 

• The ninth board member is the insurance consumer advocate appointed by the Chief 
Financial Officer, or his designee, under section 627.0613, Florida Statutes.  

• Each Board member serves a term of four years, with the most recent term expiring on June 
30, 2015.  

• The new four-year terms began on July 1, 2015.  
 

 


	ITEM     SUBJECT    RECOMMENDATION
	FLOIR Minutes 10.27.15.pdf
	Condensed & Word Index
	Index
	A
	abandon(1)
	ability(8)
	able(8)
	Abraham(1)
	absence(1)
	absolutely(5)
	absorb(1)
	absorbing(1)
	abuses(4)
	accept(4)
	acceptance(2)
	access(10)
	accessible(1)
	accommodate(4)
	account(3)
	accountability(2)
	accountable(2)
	accountant(2)
	Accounting(1)
	accounts(2)
	achieving(3)
	acknowledged(2)
	acquire(4)
	acquisition(3)
	acquisitions(1)
	acres(8)
	act(13)
	acting(4)
	action(6)
	actions(1)
	activities(9)
	Activity(1)
	actual(2)
	actuarially(1)
	actuaries(2)
	ADAM(1)
	Adams(1)
	add(10)
	added(1)
	addition(3)
	additional(10)
	address(9)
	addressed(2)
	addressing(3)
	adequate(1)
	adequately(1)
	adjacent(1)
	adjust(2)
	Adkins(4)
	Adkins's(1)
	administration(4)
	administrative(5)
	administrator(1)
	administrators(2)
	admit(1)
	adopted(3)
	adoption(7)
	adoptions(1)
	advancement(1)
	advantage(1)
	advise(1)
	advised(1)
	advisory(10)
	advocate(3)
	Advocate's(1)
	aesthetic(1)
	affairs(1)
	affect(1)
	affirmed(1)
	affirmism(1)
	affordable(4)
	afternoon(6)
	agencies(31)
	agency(37)
	agency-wide(1)
	agenda(7)
	agent(1)
	agents(1)
	ago(8)
	agree(2)
	agreed(4)
	agreement(1)
	AGRICULTURE(1)
	ahead(5)
	Aid(1)
	aided(1)
	aids(1)
	AIG(1)
	al(1)
	Alachua(3)
	allegations(1)
	Allegiance(1)
	alleviated(1)
	Alligator(2)
	Alligators(1)
	allocations(1)
	allow(11)
	allowed(2)
	allows(3)
	alluded(1)
	alter(1)
	Altmeyer(2)
	alumni(1)
	amazing(1)
	amend(2)
	amended(1)
	amount(2)
	ample(1)
	AMS(1)
	Amy(1)
	analysis(4)
	Andrew(1)
	anecdote(1)
	anesthesiologist(1)
	animal(1)
	Anna(3)
	announce(1)
	announced(1)
	annual(4)
	annually(4)
	annuities(1)
	answer(3)
	answers(1)
	anticipate(1)
	anybody(2)
	anymore(3)
	apartment(1)
	apologies(1)
	apologize(2)
	apparently(3)
	appeal(2)
	appealing(1)
	appear(4)
	appeared(3)
	appears(1)
	appellate(2)
	applicable(1)
	applicant(2)
	applicants(2)
	application(3)
	applications(7)
	applied(9)
	applies(4)
	apply(8)
	appointed(5)
	appointment(1)
	appreciate(9)
	appreciated(1)
	approach(2)
	approaching(1)
	appropriate(3)
	appropriately(2)
	approval(23)
	approve(5)
	approved(9)
	approximately(3)
	aquaculture(1)
	aquatic(16)
	archeological(1)
	archivist(1)
	archivists(2)
	area(11)
	areas(10)
	arena(1)
	argue(1)
	argument(4)
	arguments(1)
	arm(1)
	Army(1)
	arrange(1)
	arrangement(1)
	arrested(1)
	arrived(1)
	artificial(1)
	Ash(2)
	aside(1)
	asked(12)
	Askew(3)
	asking(9)
	assemblages(1)
	assess(3)
	assessment(3)
	assessments(1)
	assign(1)
	assist(1)
	assistance(2)
	assisted(1)
	associated(1)
	Association(1)
	astonishing(1)
	astounded(1)
	astounding(1)
	at-large(2)
	Atlantic(2)
	attached(1)
	attempt(6)
	attend(4)
	attended(1)
	attention(2)
	attitude(1)
	attorney(46)
	attorney's(4)
	attorney-client(1)
	attraction(1)
	attracts(1)
	Atwater(32)
	audio(1)
	August(4)
	authority(8)
	authorized(4)
	authorizes(1)
	autocrats(1)
	available(3)
	average(2)
	avoid(1)
	awarded(1)
	aware(5)

	B
	back(30)
	backed(1)
	backlog(3)
	balance(2)
	balanced(1)
	balancing(1)
	Barefoot(1)
	bargain(1)
	bargaining(2)
	Barry(1)
	base(5)
	based(5)
	bases(6)
	basic(1)
	basically(2)
	basis(7)
	batch(2)
	battles(1)
	bay(6)
	beach(9)
	beaches(1)
	bear(1)
	beat(1)
	beautiful(3)
	becoming(1)
	bed(1)
	beds(1)
	began(1)
	beginning(1)
	behalf(5)
	behavior(1)
	belief(1)
	believe(8)
	Bend(4)
	benefit(9)
	benefits(2)
	best(7)
	better(11)
	beyond(1)
	big(8)
	bigger(2)
	biggest(1)
	bill(6)
	Billie(2)
	billing(3)
	billion(9)
	bird(1)
	birding(1)
	birthdays(1)
	bit(9)
	Blanding(1)
	blessed(1)
	blindly(1)
	blog(1)
	blogs(1)
	board(72)
	boards(28)
	boating(2)
	body(2)
	Bondi(30)
	Bondi's(1)
	bonds(3)
	bonus(1)
	book(4)
	books(8)
	boost(1)
	booth(5)
	booths(1)
	born(2)
	bottom(1)
	bought(1)
	BOX(1)
	breaches(1)
	breakfast(1)
	Breakspear(5)
	breath(1)
	brief(1)
	briefly(2)
	bright(1)
	bring(5)
	bringing(3)
	brings(1)
	broad(9)
	broader(1)
	brokerage(1)
	brought(7)
	Broward(1)
	Bruce(1)
	budget(1)
	buffering(3)
	buffers(1)
	building(4)
	built(1)
	burdens(1)
	bureaucracy(1)
	bureaucrats(1)
	burning(1)
	business(14)
	businesses(8)
	Butterworth(2)
	buy(1)

	C
	Caber(2)
	cabinet(26)
	Cabinet-specific(1)
	calendar(3)
	call(5)
	called(11)
	calling(2)
	calls(5)
	Camp(1)
	canoe(1)
	cap(1)
	capabilities(1)
	capacity(1)
	capital(3)
	Capitol(2)
	Captain(2)
	captains(1)
	car(1)
	care(8)
	career(2)
	careful(1)
	carriers(2)
	carries(18)
	case(31)
	cases(23)
	CAT(1)
	Catastrophe(1)
	catastrophic(1)
	catch(1)
	catering(2)
	cautiously(2)
	Cedar(1)
	ceiling(1)
	cell(2)
	Center(1)
	central(3)
	cents(2)
	certain(5)
	certainly(6)
	CERTIFICATE(1)
	certified(1)
	certify(2)
	CFO(12)
	CFO's(1)
	Chair(1)
	Chairman(1)
	challenge(2)
	challenges(6)
	challenging(1)
	championed(2)
	change(8)
	changed(4)
	changes(6)
	Chapter(10)
	characteristics(1)
	charge(3)
	charges(1)
	charity(1)
	Charlie(2)
	checked(1)
	Cheryl(1)
	CHIEF(28)
	Chiefland(1)
	choice(4)
	choose(1)
	chose(1)
	chosen(1)
	circuit(2)
	circulate(1)
	circulated(1)
	circulating(1)
	circumstances(2)
	circumvent(2)
	cites(1)
	citizen(10)
	citizens(12)
	city(15)
	civil(1)
	civilian(1)
	civilians(1)
	claim(2)
	Claridge(4)
	Clark(1)
	Clary(2)
	classes(1)
	classroom(1)
	Claude(1)
	clear(4)
	clearinghouse(1)
	clearly(4)
	clerk(7)
	clerks(4)
	close(6)
	closed(8)
	closely(2)
	closer(2)
	closing(1)
	coastal(12)
	code(3)
	codes(3)
	codified(1)
	cold(1)
	collaboratively(1)
	colleague(1)
	collected(1)
	collective(1)
	Collins(1)
	combination(1)
	come(20)
	comes(7)
	comfort(1)
	coming(6)
	commander(1)
	commanders(3)
	commanding(2)
	commence(1)
	comment(5)
	comments(20)
	Commerce(1)
	commercial(2)
	commission(8)
	Commissioner(78)
	Commissioner's(1)
	commit(1)
	commitment(1)
	committed(6)
	committee(15)
	committees(7)
	common(2)
	communicate(3)
	communicated(2)
	communication(1)
	communications(2)
	communities(8)
	community(8)
	comp(3)
	companies(10)
	company(9)
	compare(1)
	compatible(2)
	competitive(2)
	competitors(1)
	compiled(1)
	complain(1)
	complaint(1)
	complaints(1)
	complement(1)
	complete(2)
	completed(3)
	completely(1)
	completing(1)
	complicated(3)
	comply(4)
	complying(2)
	component(6)
	components(2)
	composed(4)
	comprehension(1)
	comprised(1)
	computers(1)
	concern(3)
	concerned(8)
	concerning(1)
	concerns(3)
	conclude(1)
	concludes(4)
	conditions(3)
	conduct(1)
	conducted(2)
	confidence(2)
	confidential(13)
	configuration(1)
	confirmed(1)
	congratulate(1)
	congratulations(1)
	Congress(2)
	Congressional(1)
	Congressman(1)
	connected(1)
	connection(2)
	Connector(1)
	consensus(1)
	consequences(1)
	conservation(4)
	consider(1)
	consideration(7)
	considered(3)
	considering(3)
	consisted(1)
	consistency(1)
	consistently(2)
	constant(3)
	constantly(1)
	constitute(1)
	constituted(1)
	constitutes(2)
	constitution(1)
	constitutional(3)
	construction(3)
	consult(1)
	consumer(5)
	consumers(2)
	contact(2)
	contain(3)
	contained(1)
	containing(1)
	content(3)
	continue(7)
	continued(3)
	continues(2)
	continuing(3)
	continuos(1)
	contract(3)
	contractor(1)
	contracts(1)
	contrary(1)
	contrast(2)
	contribute(2)
	contributions(1)
	control(1)
	controversies(1)
	conversation(6)
	conversations(5)
	convey(1)
	convinced(1)
	cookie(1)
	cooperative(1)
	coordination(1)
	copied(1)
	copies(3)
	copy(4)
	Corp(1)
	corporation(3)
	correct(2)
	correctly(1)
	correspondence(2)
	cost(9)
	costing(1)
	costs(3)
	cottage(1)
	Couch(1)
	council(9)
	councilman(1)
	counsel(5)
	countenance(1)
	counties(2)
	countries(1)
	country(5)
	county(22)
	couple(5)
	course(11)
	court(34)
	courts(16)
	cover(1)
	covered(2)
	covering(2)
	covers(1)
	cows(1)
	CPA(2)
	Crabby(1)
	crafted(1)
	Craig(1)
	create(8)
	created(6)
	creates(2)
	creating(2)
	creation(1)
	creative(1)
	crime(1)
	criminal(5)
	crisis(2)
	criteria(2)
	critical(5)
	criticisms(2)
	Cross(4)
	Cross's(1)
	crux(1)
	culmination(1)
	culture(2)
	Cup(1)
	curious(1)
	current(4)
	currently(2)
	custodian(2)
	custody(2)
	cutter(1)
	cyber(2)

	D
	D'Alemberte(1)
	Dade(2)
	daily(1)
	damaging(1)
	data(18)
	database(2)
	databases(3)
	date(4)
	Dated(1)
	David(1)
	Davidson(2)
	day(11)
	days(2)
	Daytona(4)
	de(1)
	deal(7)
	dealing(6)
	deals(1)
	dealt(3)
	dean(2)
	debated(1)
	debates(1)
	Debra(1)
	decades(1)
	decide(6)
	decided(2)
	decides(3)
	decision(7)
	decision-makers(2)
	decision-making(11)
	decisions(7)
	decrease(2)
	dedicate(1)
	deductible(1)
	deductibles(1)
	deed(1)
	defense(7)
	defer(1)
	deficiency(1)
	defined(3)
	defining(1)
	definitely(1)
	definition(7)
	degenerates(1)
	degree(2)
	delay(4)
	delayed(2)
	democracy(6)
	demonstrate(2)
	demonstrates(1)
	denied(1)
	deny(1)
	DEO(8)
	DEP(9)
	DEP's(2)
	department(19)
	Department's(2)
	depend(3)
	dependent(5)
	depending(1)
	depends(1)
	depopulate(1)
	depository(1)
	Deputy(1)
	describe(1)
	described(1)
	deserves(1)
	designated(3)
	designation(1)
	desirable(1)
	desire(1)
	desires(1)
	desk(1)
	destroy(1)
	destroyed(1)
	detail(1)
	detailed(1)
	details(1)
	detected(1)
	determination(3)
	determinations(1)
	determine(2)
	determined(2)
	determines(2)
	devastated(1)
	develop(1)
	developed(4)
	developing(2)
	development(7)
	develops(1)
	device(1)
	dialogue(2)
	difference(6)
	different(7)
	difficult(6)
	difficulties(1)
	diligently(1)
	dining(1)
	direct(2)
	direction(3)
	directly(6)
	director(12)
	directors(1)
	discharged(1)
	disclosed(1)
	disclosure(1)
	discouraging(4)
	discrimination(1)
	discuss(7)
	discussed(4)
	discussing(1)
	discussion(2)
	discussions(10)
	disks(1)
	displayed(1)
	disposal(1)
	disputes(1)
	disseminate(1)
	distant(1)
	distinct(1)
	district(2)
	districts(1)
	disturbing(1)
	diversification(1)
	diversified(1)
	division(7)
	Dixie(1)
	docking(1)
	doctor(1)
	doctrine(1)
	document(3)
	documented(1)
	documents(5)
	doing(10)
	dollars(8)
	Domestic(2)
	donor(1)
	door(2)
	doors(2)
	dozens(1)
	Dozier(1)
	draft(3)
	drafts(1)
	draws(1)
	Drew(3)
	drinking(2)
	driven(1)
	driver(1)
	driver's(2)
	driver-less(1)
	driving(2)
	drops(1)
	drove(1)
	drug(1)
	drugs(1)
	due(3)
	duplication(1)
	duties(1)
	duty(1)
	Duval(1)

	E
	e-mail(6)
	e-mails(2)
	earlier(2)
	earliest(3)
	early(15)
	easement(2)
	easements(1)
	easier(3)
	easily(1)
	easy(1)
	economic(2)
	economically(1)
	economy(1)
	ecosystems(2)
	editor(5)
	educate(2)
	education(2)
	effective(3)
	effectively(1)
	efficiency(1)
	efficient(1)
	efficiently(1)
	effort(5)
	efforts(4)
	egregious(1)
	eight(1)
	eighth(2)
	either(7)
	elected(8)
	election(1)
	electorate(1)
	electronic(2)
	electronically(1)
	element(1)
	eliminate(1)
	eliminating(1)
	eloquently(1)
	emails(1)
	emanated(1)
	embarrassed(1)
	emerge(1)
	emergencies(1)
	emergency(4)
	emerging(2)
	Emery(1)
	emphasize(1)
	employee(4)
	employees(5)
	employer(1)
	employs(2)
	empower(1)
	enact(1)
	enacted(9)
	enacting(1)
	enactment(1)
	encompass(1)
	encompasses(1)
	encourage(2)
	encouraged(2)
	encouraging(3)
	encroachment(2)
	endangered(1)
	ended(2)
	Endleson(1)
	endorse(1)
	enforceable(1)
	enforced(4)
	enforcement(4)
	engaged(1)
	engineer(1)
	Engineers(1)
	England(1)
	engrain(1)
	enhance(1)
	enhancing(1)
	enjoy(1)
	enjoying(1)
	ensued(1)
	enter(1)
	Enterprise(1)
	enterprise-wide(1)
	entire(5)
	entities(3)
	entitled(3)
	entity(4)
	entrap(1)
	entry(1)
	environment(7)
	environmental(4)
	envision(1)
	envisioning(1)
	EPOs(1)
	equate(1)
	equitable(2)
	equities(1)
	era(1)
	erroneous(1)
	error(1)
	Escambia(1)
	escort(1)
	especially(5)
	essence(1)
	essentially(4)
	establish(2)
	established(5)
	establishment(1)
	Estero(5)
	estimated(2)
	estuaries(1)
	estuary(1)
	ethics(2)
	evaluate(2)
	evaluated(1)
	evaluation(3)
	evening's(1)
	event(4)
	events(1)
	eventually(2)
	Everglades(1)
	everlasting(1)
	everybody(3)
	everyday(1)
	evidence(1)
	evident(2)
	evil(1)
	exacerbated(1)
	exact(1)
	exactly(6)
	examination(1)
	example(18)
	examples(4)
	exceed(1)
	exceeding(1)
	excellent(1)
	excelling(1)
	exception(2)
	exceptions(2)
	exchange(3)
	executive(12)
	exempt(3)
	exemption(6)
	exemptions(5)
	exist(2)
	existence(1)
	existing(2)
	expand(1)
	expansion(8)
	expect(1)
	expedite(4)
	expediting(1)
	expel(1)
	expenditures(1)
	experience(7)
	experienced(1)
	experiences(2)
	expert(1)
	explain(3)
	explained(2)
	explaining(1)
	explanation(1)
	exposed(1)
	express(4)
	expressing(2)
	extended(1)
	extending(1)
	extensive(1)
	exterior(2)
	extremely(2)
	eye(1)
	eyes(1)

	F
	face(6)
	Facebook(2)
	faced(2)
	facet(1)
	facilitated(1)
	facilities(1)
	facility(3)
	facing(2)
	fact(15)
	facto(1)
	factor(2)
	factors(3)
	Faculty(2)
	FAIC(1)
	failure(1)
	fair(4)
	fairly(2)
	fairness(1)
	fall(1)
	familiar(2)
	families(1)
	family(5)
	famous(2)
	far(9)
	fathers(2)
	favor(1)
	favorable(1)
	FDIC(1)
	feature(1)
	federal(1)
	federally(1)
	fee(1)
	feel(8)
	feels(2)
	fees(10)
	feet(3)
	fell(1)
	felt(7)
	FEMA(1)
	ferocity(1)
	fewer(2)
	field(2)
	fields(1)
	fifth(1)
	file(4)
	filed(2)
	filing(1)
	films(1)
	final(11)
	finally(7)
	finance(3)
	financial(42)
	financially(1)
	financially-troubled(1)
	find(6)
	finish(1)
	firm(6)
	first(26)
	fiscal(5)
	fish(3)
	fishery(1)
	fishing(2)
	fits(1)
	FIU(1)
	five(3)
	five-and-a-half(1)
	fix(1)
	fixed(1)
	flip(1)
	flood(2)
	floor(1)
	Florida(98)
	Florida's(9)
	Floridians(8)
	flow(1)
	focus(8)
	focused(1)
	focusing(2)
	folks(5)
	follow(1)
	following(2)
	foot(2)
	force(9)
	foregoing(1)
	Foreign(2)
	foreseeable(1)
	foreseeably(1)
	Forest(1)
	forests(1)
	Forever(1)
	forging(1)
	form(5)
	formal(2)
	formalistic(1)
	formalize(1)
	format(1)
	former(2)
	forms(1)
	forth(2)
	Fortunately(1)
	forum(2)
	forward(7)
	forwarded(1)
	fosters(1)
	found(4)
	founding(2)
	four(8)
	fourth(2)
	FPR(1)
	France(1)
	frankly(1)
	fraudulent(1)
	free(2)
	frequently(1)
	freshwater(2)
	Friday(1)
	friendly(1)
	front(3)
	fruition(1)
	frustrated(4)
	frustrating(1)
	FSU(1)
	Fugate(2)
	full(2)
	function(2)
	functions(2)
	fund(9)
	funded(2)
	funding(1)
	funds(1)
	funneled(1)
	further(5)
	future(13)
	FWCC(1)
	FY(1)

	G
	Gainesville(2)
	game(1)
	gather(2)
	gathering(2)
	Gator(1)
	general(40)
	general's(6)
	generally(2)
	generating(1)
	generic(2)
	gentlemen(2)
	geology(1)
	getting(9)
	Gilway(1)
	Girl(1)
	give(16)
	given(7)
	gives(1)
	giving(1)
	glad(3)
	Gleason(16)
	Gleason's(1)
	go(42)
	goal(3)
	goals(8)
	godfather(2)
	goes(3)
	going(37)
	good(30)
	Google(1)
	got-ya(1)
	govern(1)
	Governance(1)
	governing(1)
	government(69)
	government's(3)
	governmental(11)
	governments(4)
	Governor(126)
	Governor's(2)
	Governors(2)
	grace(2)
	graduate(1)
	Graham(1)
	grants(1)
	grapple(1)
	grass(2)
	grasses(3)
	gratitude(1)
	great(12)
	greater(1)
	greatest(5)
	grew(1)
	groundwater(1)
	group(1)
	groups(2)
	grown(1)
	growth(1)
	guarantee(1)
	guess(2)
	guessing(1)
	guidance(1)
	Guidelines(1)
	Gulf(1)
	guys(1)

	H
	habitat(2)
	hair(1)
	half(2)
	hampering(1)
	hand(2)
	handled(1)
	happen(4)
	happened(5)
	happening(1)
	happens(3)
	happy(2)
	harboring(1)
	hard(8)
	hard-working(1)
	hardening(2)
	harder(1)
	harness(1)
	harped(1)
	heading(1)
	health(7)
	hear(4)
	heard(10)
	hearing(21)
	hears(1)
	heart(2)
	heavily(1)
	held(2)
	Hello(1)
	help(15)
	helped(1)
	helpful(2)
	Herald(1)
	Hey(1)
	Hi(2)
	highest(3)
	highlight(2)
	highlights(1)
	hire(4)
	hired(1)
	hiring(2)
	historical(2)
	historically(2)
	history(5)
	hit(3)
	hits(1)
	HIV(1)
	HMOs(1)
	Hogel(1)
	hold(6)
	holding(1)
	home(1)
	honestly(1)
	honey(2)
	honor(1)
	hope(3)
	hopefully(2)
	hospital(1)
	host(1)
	hotel(1)
	hour(2)
	hour-and-a-half(1)
	hours(3)
	house(1)
	houses(1)
	Housing(2)
	huge(6)
	hundreds(1)
	hurricane(4)
	hurt(1)

	I
	iconic(2)
	idea(7)
	ideas(4)
	identifiable(1)
	identified(3)
	identify(7)
	identifying(1)
	identities(1)
	identity(2)
	illegal(6)
	impact(7)
	impacted(1)
	impacting(1)
	impacts(1)
	implement(1)
	implementation(1)
	implemented(1)
	implementing(2)
	implications(1)
	importance(3)
	important(26)
	importantly(1)
	impose(1)
	impossible(3)
	impress(1)
	improprieties(1)
	improve(4)
	improvement(3)
	improvements(1)
	improving(1)
	in-the-public-interest(1)
	inadvertently(1)
	inappropriate(1)
	inappropriately(1)
	inaudible(1)
	include(4)
	included(4)
	including(1)
	incompatible(2)
	incomplete(1)
	increased(1)
	increasing(1)
	increasingly(1)
	incredible(1)
	incredibly(2)
	indigenous(1)
	individual(5)
	individually(1)
	individuals(1)
	industry(3)
	inefficiently(1)
	influx(2)
	informal(1)
	informally(1)
	information(42)
	informations(1)
	informative(1)
	informed(2)
	informs(1)
	infrastructure(2)
	initial(1)
	initially(1)
	initiative(1)
	injunction(1)
	input(9)
	inputs(1)
	inquire(1)
	inquiries(1)
	inquiry(1)
	insisted(1)
	inspect(2)
	inspection(4)
	inspirational(1)
	instability(1)
	installation(2)
	installation's(1)
	installations(2)
	instance(1)
	instill(1)
	institution(1)
	instruction(1)
	insurance(12)
	insure(5)
	Insurer(3)
	insures(1)
	insuring(3)
	integers(1)
	integrity(1)
	intended(2)
	intends(1)
	intent(2)
	interagency(1)
	interest(6)
	interested(4)
	interesting(7)
	interests(2)
	intermediaries(1)
	intermediary(2)
	INTERNAL(2)
	internally(1)
	interplay(1)
	interpretation(1)
	interpreted(2)
	interrogate(1)
	intervene(1)
	intrigued(2)
	intriguing(3)
	introduction(1)
	inventories(1)
	investigate(1)
	investigation(1)
	investigative(2)
	investing(1)
	investment(1)
	invocation(2)
	involve(1)
	involved(4)
	involvement(1)
	involving(2)
	ironic(1)
	irrelevant(1)
	IRS(1)
	isolate(1)
	issue(21)
	issues(23)
	item(36)
	items(9)

	J
	Jack(1)
	Jacksonville(2)
	James(4)
	January(1)
	JEFF(1)
	Jefferson(2)
	jeopardize(1)
	job(6)
	jobs(9)
	Joe's(1)
	Johns(1)
	joined(1)
	joining(1)
	Joint(1)
	Jon(3)
	Jones(2)
	judge(3)
	judgment(2)
	judicially(2)
	July(1)
	jump(1)
	Jupiter(1)
	justice(6)
	Justice's(1)
	Justices(1)
	justified(1)

	K
	keep(4)
	keeping(1)
	Kent(1)
	kept(5)
	Kevin(34)
	key(6)
	kind(18)
	kindness(1)
	kinds(2)
	knew(2)
	know(44)
	knowledge(4)
	known(1)
	knows(3)
	Koval(1)

	L
	labor(2)
	lack(1)
	lady(2)
	LaFlamme(3)
	Lake(2)
	Lance(1)
	land(5)
	lands(5)
	landscapes(1)
	language(1)
	laptops(1)
	large(7)
	larger(2)
	lastly(2)
	late(1)
	law(124)
	laws(17)
	lawsuit(4)
	lawsuits(3)
	lawyer(1)
	lawyers(4)
	lead(2)
	leaders(1)
	leadership(2)
	learn(3)
	learned(3)
	lease(4)
	leave(2)
	leaves(1)
	leaving(3)
	led(3)
	Lee(1)
	legacy(2)
	legal(2)
	legislation(3)
	legislative(4)
	legislative-type(1)
	legislatively(2)
	Legislature(22)
	Legislatures(1)
	legitimate(2)
	length(1)
	lengthy(2)
	LEON(1)
	Leroy(1)
	lessening(1)
	Letkin(1)
	letter(6)
	letters(5)
	letting(1)
	level(7)
	leverage(1)
	Levy(1)
	Lewis(5)
	liaison(6)
	license(2)
	life(5)
	light(5)
	lighting(2)
	likes(1)
	limitations(1)
	limited(1)
	limits(1)
	line(1)
	lines(1)
	list(13)
	listed(1)
	listening(3)
	litany(1)
	litigation(1)
	little(14)
	live(3)
	lived(1)
	lives(1)
	living(1)
	LMUAC(3)
	loans(1)
	lobbyist(5)
	local(19)
	locally(1)
	locals(1)
	located(2)
	location(3)
	long(11)
	long-term(2)
	longer(2)
	longtime(1)
	look(18)
	looked(5)
	looking(19)
	looks(1)
	losses(2)
	lost(3)
	lot(28)
	lots(1)
	lots-of-moving-parts-type(1)
	loudly(1)
	love(1)
	loves(1)
	low(2)
	LOWER(1)
	lowest(1)
	lucky(1)
	Lucy(1)
	lunch(2)

	M
	Madison(2)
	main(1)
	maintain(2)
	maintained(1)
	major(2)
	majority(1)
	making(10)
	managed(4)
	management(9)
	manager(6)
	managers(3)
	manages(1)
	manatee(1)
	mangrove(2)
	manner(5)
	mansion(1)
	manual(3)
	maps(1)
	March(1)
	Marine(1)
	Mark(1)
	marked(1)
	market(10)
	marketplace(12)
	marshal(1)
	Marshall(3)
	marshes(1)
	Marston(5)
	mat(3)
	material(10)
	materials(3)
	Matt(1)
	matter(7)
	matters(5)
	maximum(1)
	Mayo(1)
	mayor(2)
	Mayport(9)
	McCall(1)
	McCarty(25)
	McDill(2)
	McPherson(9)
	meadows(1)
	mean(6)
	meaningless(1)
	means(6)
	measure(4)
	measured(2)
	measures(16)
	measuring(1)
	mechanisms(1)
	media(8)
	mediated(1)
	mediation(2)
	medium(1)
	meet(8)
	meeting(38)
	meetings(28)
	meets(1)
	member(12)
	members(29)
	membership(1)
	memory(2)
	mention(3)
	mentioned(9)
	message(2)
	messages(1)
	met(6)
	methods(1)
	metrics(2)
	metropolitan(1)
	Miami(1)
	middle(1)
	middle-of-the-road(1)
	military(6)
	million(8)
	millions(1)
	mind(2)
	mindful(1)
	Minnesota(1)
	minutes(7)
	mission(3)
	mitigate(3)
	mixed(1)
	model(3)
	modeled(2)
	modeling(1)
	modern(2)
	modernization(1)
	modification(3)
	modifications(2)
	modifying(1)
	money(3)
	monitoring(2)
	monthly(1)
	months(1)
	Moore(1)
	morning(12)
	morning's(1)
	mortgage(3)
	motion(36)
	mouthful(1)
	move(5)
	moved(17)
	movies(1)
	moving(5)
	multi-event(1)
	multi-family(3)
	multiple(6)
	multiples(1)
	mundane(1)
	municipal(1)
	municipality(3)

	N
	name(3)
	named(2)
	narrow(2)
	narrowing(1)
	narrowly(1)
	nation(1)
	national(3)
	nationwide(1)
	natural(6)
	nature(3)
	Naval(7)
	Navy(2)
	Navy's(1)
	near(3)
	nearly(1)
	necessarily(2)
	necessary(4)
	need(22)
	needed(3)
	needs(10)
	nefarious(1)
	negative(1)
	negotiate(2)
	negotiating(1)
	negotiation(1)
	nesting(1)
	net(1)
	network(1)
	networks(1)
	never(8)
	new(15)
	newer(1)
	newly-elected(2)
	news(2)
	newspaper(8)
	newspapers(1)
	nice(1)
	night(2)
	nominations(1)
	non(1)
	non-commercial(1)
	non-conservation(4)
	non-correlated(1)
	non-disruptive(1)
	non-priority(1)
	non-water(3)
	noncompliance(2)
	normally(1)
	north(1)
	notably(1)
	Notary(3)
	notes(4)
	notice(11)
	noticed(5)
	notices(1)
	noticing(1)
	notwithstanding(1)
	novelistic(1)
	November(3)
	number(22)
	numbers(3)
	nurseries(2)
	nursery(1)

	O
	objections(17)
	objective(4)
	obligation(1)
	observation(1)
	obsessed(1)
	obtain(1)
	obtains(1)
	obviously(4)
	occasion(1)
	Occasionally(1)
	occur(4)
	occurred(2)
	occurring(1)
	occurs(1)
	Ocean(1)
	October(3)
	offer(4)
	offered(1)
	office(31)
	officer(31)
	officers(2)
	offices(5)
	official(5)
	officials(9)
	OFR(2)
	oftentimes(3)
	OIR(1)
	okay(8)
	old(9)
	oldest(2)
	once(14)
	ones(6)
	online(7)
	onsey-twosey(1)
	open(33)
	open-door(1)
	opened(1)
	operate(3)
	operated(1)
	operates(1)
	operating(1)
	operation(2)
	operational(1)
	operations(4)
	opinion(3)
	opinions(4)
	opportunities(2)
	opportunity(14)
	opposed(1)
	optimistic(2)
	option(1)
	options(1)
	Orange(1)
	order(5)
	ordinance(1)
	ordinary(3)
	organization(1)
	organizations(1)
	original(2)
	originally(1)
	ORSA(1)
	out-of-pocket(1)
	outcome(1)
	outlines(1)
	outreach(1)
	outside(8)
	outstanding(1)
	outweighs(1)
	over-extensive(1)
	overall(1)
	overbroad(2)
	overcome(1)
	overview(1)
	overviews(1)
	owned(1)
	owners(2)
	owns(1)

	P
	package(1)
	page(3)
	paid(3)
	Palm(1)
	Palms(1)
	PAM(1)
	pamphlets(1)
	Panama(1)
	panic(1)
	paper(3)
	papers(1)
	parcel(1)
	pardoning(1)
	park(2)
	parking(2)
	parks(3)
	part(16)
	partial(1)
	participants(2)
	participate(1)
	participating(1)
	particular(12)
	particularly(8)
	parties(3)
	partner(1)
	partnering(1)
	partnership(1)
	partnerships(2)
	pass(7)
	passage(1)
	passed(3)
	passion(2)
	passionate(1)
	Pat(12)
	path(2)
	pavilion(1)
	pay(7)
	paying(4)
	payment(1)
	payments(1)
	pays(1)
	peeled(1)
	penalties(6)
	pending(2)
	pension(1)
	people(61)
	people's(3)
	peoples(1)
	per-acquisition(2)
	perceived(1)
	percent(18)
	Perez(1)
	perform(1)
	performance(9)
	period(1)
	periodically(1)
	periods(1)
	perpetuate(1)
	person(19)
	personal(4)
	personally(1)
	personnel(3)
	perspective(1)
	Pete(1)
	petty(1)
	phenomenal(1)
	Phillips(1)
	phone(7)
	phonetic(5)
	photographs(2)
	photography(1)
	physical(2)
	pick(3)
	picture(2)
	pictures(3)
	piece(3)
	pieces(1)
	pier(12)
	pies(1)
	pile(1)
	Pinellas(1)
	place(7)
	placement(1)
	places(2)
	plan(4)
	planning(1)
	plans(7)
	plant(1)
	plate(1)
	play(3)
	played(2)
	players(1)
	playing(1)
	plea(1)
	please(5)
	pleased(1)
	pleasure(1)
	Pledge(1)
	PNC(1)
	point(15)
	pointing(1)
	pointless(1)
	points(2)
	police(1)
	policies(7)
	policy(3)
	policyholders(3)
	poll(1)
	polling(1)
	popular(1)
	populous(1)
	Port(2)
	portfolios(1)
	portions(3)
	position(2)
	positions(3)
	positive(2)
	positively(1)
	possess(1)
	possible(4)
	POST(1)
	posted(1)
	posts(1)
	potential(3)
	potentially(1)
	power(3)
	PowerPoint(1)
	PowerPoints(1)
	powers(1)
	PPOs(2)
	practice(1)
	practices(5)
	practicing(1)
	pre-Cabinet(1)
	premiums(1)
	prepared(1)
	prescribed(1)
	presence(1)
	present(2)
	presented(3)
	preserve(8)
	preserved(1)
	preserves(5)
	president(9)
	press(3)
	pressure(1)
	presumably(1)
	pretty(1)
	prevailed(1)
	previous(2)
	previously(3)
	price(1)
	primary(3)
	principle(3)
	principle-based(1)
	principles(1)
	prior(2)
	priorities(1)
	priority(3)
	private(11)
	privately(1)
	privilege(2)
	probably(14)
	problem(5)
	problems(6)
	procedures(4)
	proceeding(1)
	proceedings(2)
	process(16)
	processing(1)
	produce(3)
	production(7)
	productive(1)
	productivity(1)
	products(4)
	professional(3)
	professionalism(1)
	program(9)
	programs(2)
	prohibited(1)
	project(6)
	project-driven(1)
	projecting(1)
	projects(15)
	prominent(2)
	promote(4)
	promotes(1)
	promptly(1)
	proper(1)
	properly(4)
	properties(11)
	property(7)
	proposal(4)
	proposals(5)
	proposed(21)
	proposing(1)
	proprietary(4)
	prosecuted(3)
	prosecutions(1)
	prosecutor(1)
	protect(8)
	protected(1)
	protecting(3)
	protection(4)
	protections(2)
	provide(13)
	provided(7)
	provides(4)
	providing(5)
	provision(3)
	provisions(3)
	public(144)
	public's(3)
	publicly(1)
	publish(4)
	published(1)
	punished(1)
	purchased(1)
	purpose(2)
	purposes(3)
	pursuant(2)
	pursuing(2)
	push(3)
	pushing(1)
	put(19)
	Putnam(40)
	putting(3)

	Q
	qualitative(1)
	quality(4)
	quantifiable(1)
	quantity(2)
	quarter(3)
	quarterly(2)
	quasi-judicial(1)
	question(17)
	questions(15)
	quick(5)
	quickly(4)
	quite(3)

	R
	raise(1)
	raises(1)
	ran(1)
	random(1)
	range(1)
	ranging(1)
	rape(2)
	rapid(1)
	rate(2)
	rated(1)
	rates(8)
	re-insurance(2)
	re-insurer(1)
	reach(1)
	reaching(1)
	read(12)
	reading(1)
	ready(2)
	real(9)
	Realignment(1)
	reality(1)
	realize(2)
	realized(2)
	really(47)
	reapportioned(1)
	reason(8)
	reasonable(6)
	reasoning(1)
	reasons(2)
	rebuild(1)
	recall(1)
	receipts(1)
	receive(2)
	received(9)
	receives(1)
	receiving(2)
	recipe(1)
	recognition(1)
	recognize(9)
	recognized(3)
	recognizes(1)
	recognizing(1)
	recommend(2)
	recommendation(2)
	recommendations(4)
	recommended(2)
	recommending(1)
	recommends(5)
	reconfigure(1)
	record(29)
	record-keepers(1)
	recorded(1)
	recording(1)
	recordings(2)
	records(106)
	recourse(1)
	recovery(1)
	Recreation(1)
	recreational(4)
	Red(1)
	redact(4)
	redacted(2)
	redomesticating(1)
	reduce(2)
	reevaluated(1)
	refer(1)
	reference(1)
	referenced(2)
	referring(2)
	reflect(4)
	reflects(2)
	reforms(4)
	refuse(1)
	refused(2)
	refusing(1)
	regard(6)
	regarding(3)
	regardless(4)
	regime(1)
	Register(1)
	regularly-scheduled(1)
	Regulation(8)
	regulators(1)
	regulatory(1)
	reimbursement(1)
	reinsert(1)
	reiterate(2)
	rejected(4)
	related(3)
	relates(1)
	relating(10)
	relation(1)
	relationship(4)
	relative(3)
	relatively(1)
	relayed(1)
	relaying(1)
	release(1)
	released(4)
	relevant(1)
	relocate(1)
	relocating(1)
	remain(3)
	remaining(1)
	remember(9)
	remind(1)
	reminder(1)
	remote(1)
	remove(2)
	removing(1)
	rent(1)
	rental(1)
	rentals(2)
	reopen(1)
	repair(2)
	replaced(1)
	replicate(1)
	report(14)
	reportable(1)
	reported(2)
	reporter(5)
	REPORTERS(1)
	reporting(4)
	reports(5)
	representative(2)
	represents(2)
	Republic(2)
	request(29)
	requested(1)
	requester(10)
	requesters(5)
	requesting(2)
	requests(13)
	require(5)
	required(3)
	requirement(3)
	requirements(2)
	requires(4)
	rescinded(1)
	researcher(1)
	reserving(1)
	resident(1)
	residents(1)
	residual(1)
	resign(1)
	resiliency(2)
	resolve(2)
	resolved(2)
	resource(2)
	resources(15)
	respect(2)
	respectfully(6)
	respects(2)
	responded(3)
	responding(1)
	response(5)
	responsibilities(1)
	responsibility(6)
	responsible(3)
	responsive(2)
	rest(4)
	restaurant(3)
	restoration(2)
	restraints(1)
	restrict(1)
	restricted(1)
	restrictive(2)
	result(4)
	resulted(1)
	results(3)
	resumes(1)
	resurgence(1)
	retained(6)
	retention(3)
	retire(1)
	retired(2)
	retrieve(1)
	returned(1)
	Revels(1)
	revenue(7)
	review(2)
	revision(3)
	reward(1)
	Richmond(5)
	Richter(3)
	RICK(1)
	ridiculous(1)
	right(29)
	rights(2)
	risen(1)
	risk(9)
	risk-based(1)
	risks(3)
	rival(1)
	river(3)
	Riviera(1)
	Robert(1)
	Rock(1)
	Rocky(7)
	Rodriguez(1)
	role(8)
	roles(2)
	rolled(1)
	rolling(2)
	roof(1)
	room(4)
	Ross(1)
	rubbish(1)
	rule(15)
	rulemaking(3)
	rulers(1)
	rules(11)
	rulings(1)
	run(1)
	running(1)
	Ryobovich(1)

	S
	safe(2)
	safeguard(2)
	safeguarding(1)
	safety(2)
	sake(1)
	salaries(1)
	salary(1)
	salt(1)
	salutary(1)
	Sandy(1)
	satisfy(2)
	saw(4)
	saying(11)
	says(6)
	scalloping(1)
	scenario(1)
	scenarios(1)
	scenic(2)
	schedule(1)
	scheduled(2)
	schedules(2)
	Schellhorn(1)
	school(17)
	scientific(1)
	scope(4)
	score(2)
	scoring(1)
	Scott(98)
	Scout(1)
	screen(2)
	screening(2)
	sea(6)
	Seagrass(1)
	search(9)
	season(5)
	seasons(1)
	seat(5)
	second(38)
	Seconded(1)
	secret(1)
	Secretary(25)
	secrets(1)
	section(6)
	sector(3)
	securing(1)
	security(4)
	see(42)
	seeing(12)
	seeking(3)
	seen(10)
	select(2)
	selected(3)
	Seminole(1)
	Senate(8)
	senator(10)
	send(1)
	sender(1)
	sense(6)
	sensitive(2)
	sent(2)
	sentence(3)
	separate(1)
	separating(1)
	September(4)
	sequence(1)
	series(2)
	serious(1)
	serve(6)
	served(1)
	serves(1)
	service(3)
	services(8)
	serving(1)
	session(4)
	sessions(2)
	set(5)
	setting(1)
	seven(6)
	shape(1)
	share(3)
	SHELLHORN(1)
	Shelly(1)
	ships(1)
	shoes(1)
	shop(1)
	Shores(4)
	short(1)
	short-term(1)
	shortage(1)
	shorter(1)
	shortly(1)
	shot(1)
	show(8)
	showing(2)
	shows(3)
	shrink(1)
	side(2)
	sides(1)
	siding(1)
	sight-seeing(1)
	significant(6)
	silence(1)
	similarly(3)
	simple(3)
	simply(9)
	Simpson(1)
	Simpson's(1)
	sincere(1)
	sincerely(1)
	single(8)
	sir(9)
	sit(1)
	sites(12)
	situation(11)
	situations(1)
	six(1)
	sleeping(1)
	slices(1)
	slide(11)
	slides(1)
	slipped(1)
	slips(2)
	slowly(1)
	small(4)
	smaller(2)
	so-called(1)
	soccer(1)
	social(2)
	society(1)
	software(1)
	sole(1)
	solicited(1)
	soliciting(1)
	solidified(1)
	solve(1)
	Solvency(1)
	somebody(7)
	someone's(2)
	somewhat(2)
	soon(3)
	sorry(3)
	sort(5)
	sound(1)
	sounds(2)
	source(1)
	south(3)
	sovereign(2)
	spam(2)
	speak(3)
	speaker(1)
	speakers(1)
	speaking(1)
	spearheaded(1)
	species(3)
	specific(3)
	specifically(3)
	spend(3)
	spending(1)
	spent(1)
	spikes(1)
	split(1)
	spoke(1)
	spring(1)
	springs(3)
	squadrons(1)
	square(3)
	St(2)
	stability(1)
	stable(1)
	staff(24)
	staffer(1)
	staffs(2)
	stage(1)
	stakeholder(8)
	stakeholders(4)
	stand(2)
	standard(7)
	standing(1)
	standpoint(1)
	stands(1)
	stark(3)
	start(1)
	started(7)
	starting(1)
	starts(1)
	state(51)
	statement(1)
	states(13)
	Station(6)
	status(2)
	statute(7)
	statutes(1)
	statutory(7)
	stay(1)
	stays(1)
	steal(3)
	stenographic(1)
	stenographically(1)
	step(1)
	stepped(2)
	Steve(1)
	Steverson(22)
	stirring(1)
	stockholder(1)
	stockholders(1)
	stop(1)
	stops(1)
	storage(1)
	store(1)
	stored(1)
	storm(6)
	storms(2)
	story(1)
	strains(1)
	Stranburg(5)
	strategic(4)
	strategy(1)
	street(1)
	stress(8)
	strictly(1)
	strong(7)
	strongest(1)
	strongly(2)
	struck(3)
	structure(1)
	struggle(2)
	student(3)
	students(2)
	style(1)
	sub(1)
	sub-D(1)
	subject(12)
	subjective(4)
	submerged(3)
	submittal(1)
	submitted(2)
	subordinate(1)
	subsequent(1)
	substance(1)
	substantially(1)
	success(4)
	successes(1)
	succession(1)
	successment(1)
	sued(5)
	sufficient(1)
	suggest(3)
	suggestions(1)
	Sullivan(1)
	summaries(1)
	summary(2)
	summer(1)
	sun(1)
	Sunglow(4)
	Sunshine(90)
	superintendent(2)
	supply(1)
	support(20)
	supportable(1)
	supporting(5)
	Suppose(1)
	supposed(3)
	Supreme(9)
	sure(23)
	surfaces(1)
	surfacing(1)
	surplus(2)
	surprise(2)
	surprised(2)
	surprisingly(1)
	survey(1)
	survival(1)
	survive(1)
	swamp(1)
	swoop(1)
	sworn(1)
	system(3)
	systems(2)

	T
	tailor(2)
	tailoring(1)
	take(13)
	take-out(1)
	take-outs(1)
	taken(2)
	takes(1)
	talented(2)
	talk(3)
	talked(3)
	talking(11)
	Tallahassee(3)
	tangible(1)
	tapes(2)
	target(2)
	task(8)
	tax(2)
	taxes(1)
	taxpayer(7)
	taxpayers(2)
	Taylor(1)
	teach(3)
	teaching(1)
	team(7)
	tease(1)
	technical(1)
	technologies(5)
	technology(2)
	telephone(3)
	tell(7)
	telling(1)
	tells(2)
	tens(1)
	term(1)
	terms(5)
	test(10)
	testament(2)
	testify(1)
	testimonies(1)
	testimony(1)
	tests(2)
	text(1)
	thank(64)
	thankful(1)
	thanks(5)
	theft(1)
	theory(2)
	thereabouts(1)
	thing(12)
	things(16)
	think(63)
	thinking(2)
	thinks(3)
	third(2)
	Thomas(1)
	thought(15)
	thoughts(1)
	thousand(1)
	thousands(1)
	threatened(1)
	threats(1)
	three(32)
	tier(4)
	tiered(1)
	Tim(1)
	time(34)
	timeless(1)
	timeline(1)
	timelines(1)
	timely(3)
	times(10)
	title(1)
	today(15)
	today's(1)
	told(3)
	Tom(2)
	tools(4)
	top(4)
	topic(4)
	total(5)
	totalitarian(1)
	totalling(1)
	touch(1)
	touched(2)
	tough(1)
	town(5)
	track(2)
	traded(1)
	traditional(1)
	traditionally(2)
	trail(1)
	train(1)
	training(6)
	transaction(1)
	transactions(1)
	transcript(2)
	transferred(2)
	transforming(1)
	transmission(1)
	transmittal(1)
	transparency(7)
	transparent(3)
	traveled(1)
	treated(1)
	treatment(1)
	trend(1)
	tributaries(1)
	tried(7)
	trilogy(1)
	triple(1)
	Troop(1)
	trouble(1)
	true(3)
	truly(1)
	trust(7)
	trusted(1)
	trustee(1)
	Trustees(3)
	truth(1)
	truthfully(1)
	try(7)
	trying(9)
	Tuesday(2)
	turn(2)
	turned(1)
	turns(1)
	turtle(1)
	turtles(2)
	twice(1)
	two(22)
	two-page(1)
	two-person(1)
	two-sided(1)
	type(1)
	types(10)
	typically(4)

	U
	Uber(1)
	ultimate(1)
	unclear(1)
	uncommon(1)
	undergraduate(1)
	understand(8)
	understanding(2)
	Underwriting(1)
	Undiscriminatory(1)
	unethical(1)
	unfavorable(1)
	unflattering(1)
	unfortunately(2)
	Uniform(1)
	unique(3)
	uniqueness(1)
	universities(1)
	university(4)
	University's(1)
	unjustified(1)
	unnoticed(3)
	update(1)
	updated(2)
	updates(2)
	updating(1)
	uphold(1)
	upholding(1)
	Uplift(1)
	uplifts(1)
	upset(1)
	urge(1)
	use(13)
	uses(3)
	usual(1)
	usually(3)

	V
	vacant(1)
	vacated(1)
	valid(1)
	valuable(5)
	value(2)
	values(1)
	variety(1)
	various(2)
	vehicle(1)
	verified(2)
	viability(1)
	vibrancy(1)
	vibrant(2)
	victim(1)
	victim's(1)
	victimized(1)
	victims(1)
	video(1)
	videotape(1)
	view(11)
	viewing(1)
	views(2)
	violate(3)
	violating(1)
	violation(2)
	violations(1)
	virtually(3)
	vision(5)
	Visit(1)
	visitors(3)
	vital(3)
	voice(1)
	volume(2)
	Volusia(1)
	vote(4)
	voted(1)
	vulnerable(3)

	W
	wait(3)
	waiting(1)
	waiving(1)
	Wakulla(1)
	walk(3)
	walking(1)
	wall(1)
	want(47)
	wanted(10)
	wanting(2)
	wants(5)
	war(1)
	Ward(1)
	warning(1)
	warrant(1)
	wastewater(1)
	watched(1)
	watching(1)
	water(9)
	waterfronts(1)
	waters(1)
	way(47)
	ways(1)
	we've(17)
	weakness(1)
	wearing(1)
	weather(2)
	website(3)
	websites(1)
	wedding(1)
	weeks(2)
	weigh(1)
	Weitzel(1)
	Wekiva(5)
	welcome(7)
	welfare(1)
	well-being(1)
	well-informed(1)
	well-known(2)
	well-recognized(1)
	well-run(1)
	well-taken(2)
	went(9)
	Wes(1)
	Wheeler(3)
	whim(1)
	White(1)
	whole-heartedly(1)
	wide(1)
	wild(1)
	Wildlife(2)
	Williams(6)
	willing(3)
	wind(1)
	wind-only(1)
	wish(3)
	withdrawn(1)
	withheld(3)
	woman's(1)
	wondered(1)
	wonderful(4)
	Wood(1)
	wooden(2)
	word(1)
	words(13)
	work(19)
	worked(9)
	workers(3)
	working(18)
	workshop(2)
	workshops(2)
	world(2)
	worse(1)
	write(2)
	writer(1)
	writers(1)
	writes(1)
	writing(3)
	written(3)
	wrong(2)
	wrote(2)

	Y
	yachts(2)
	Yeah(4)
	year(29)
	year-to(1)
	years(21)
	yelling(1)
	yield(1)
	you-all(2)
	young(1)
	Yvonne(3)

	Z
	zoning(1)

	0
	04(4)
	04-'05(1)

	1
	1(5)
	1.2(1)
	1.5(1)
	1.8(1)
	10(7)
	10,700(1)
	100(3)
	100-330(1)
	10th(2)
	11(1)
	110(1)
	1100(1)
	119(6)
	12(1)
	124(1)
	13,800(1)
	13/14(1)
	130,000(2)
	14/15(1)
	145.4(1)
	15(3)
	15/16(1)
	150(1)
	1500(2)
	16(2)
	17(2)
	18-1(1)
	18-2(1)
	18-9.010(1)
	19(1)
	1900(1)
	1905(1)
	1909(1)
	1930s(5)
	1934(1)
	1940s(1)
	1944(3)
	1950(1)
	1950s(1)
	1960(1)
	1960s(2)
	1966(1)
	1967(4)
	1969(1)
	1970s(5)
	1975(1)
	1985(2)
	1990s(1)
	1992(1)
	1st(4)

	2
	2(4)
	2.73(1)
	2/3(1)
	20(2)
	2003(1)
	2004(1)
	2007(1)
	2008(1)
	2010(1)
	2012(2)
	2014(2)
	2014.97(1)
	2015(9)
	23(2)
	25(1)
	27(1)
	275,000(2)
	27th(1)
	286.0114(1)
	29(2)

	3
	3(5)
	3,000(1)
	30(3)
	30,000(2)
	3093(1)
	32315(1)
	352,000.06(1)
	37(1)
	38(2)

	4
	4(6)
	4.86(1)
	40(1)
	41(1)

	5
	5(5)
	5,000(1)
	5,600(1)
	5.85(1)
	500(1)
	5000(1)
	550,000(1)
	57(1)
	58(1)
	5th(2)

	6
	6(1)
	60s(1)
	630,000(1)
	64(2)
	662(1)
	67(1)
	697-8314(1)
	6b(1)

	7
	7(2)
	70(1)
	72(1)
	75(1)

	8
	8(1)
	8,000(1)
	8:30(1)
	850(1)
	86(1)

	9
	9(1)
	90(6)
	91(1)
	93(1)
	95(2)
	99.9(2)


	Word Index
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	Y
	Z
	0
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9



